
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
                                                 Tuesday, January 7, 2020 
                 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

           6:30 p.m. 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER-Matthew Ballou-Chair  
 

II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda.  In the 
interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments 
(including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent 
in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE and KEB.    

  
IV. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report   

ii. Business Administrator’s Report  
iii. Principals’ Reports  
iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
VI. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 

a. FY 2020-2021 Budget 
i. Project Code Report 

ii. Warrants 
 Collective Bargaining Agreement-WLCTA 
 Building/Equipment & Roadways Capital Reserve 
 Special Education Capital Reserve 
 Establishing a Reserve Fund 

b. Budget Audit 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 

 
IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

i. Negotiations 
 

X. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  
i.   Denise Shea-Long-term Substitute-Kindergarten LCS 

ii.   Tracy AuCoin-Transfer to ABA Therapist LCS 
iii.   Kieran Kiley-Hired-ABA Therapist-FRES 
iv.   Thomas Crowley-Hired-Coach Boys JV Basketball 
v.   Amber Casavant, BCBA-Resignation 

 
XI. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 

 
XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 
XIII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  



 
XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)  

i. Negotiations 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐January 21, 6:30 PM at WLC‐Media Room 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
\\\\ 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT 
January 7, 2020 

 
Over the past few months we have been working directly the towns of Lyndeborough and Wilton 
to ensure that the cash flow for each town was not inhibited with the delay in having the tax rate 
set.  The SAU worked in coordinaƟon with each town in how they needed things to happen.   
 

Wilton needed to hold off on making the payment to the district in November all together. 
We received the November check in the first week of December.  The December check is 
scheduled to be remiƩed to the District on December 27th, this is about two weeks later 
than normal.  We will be back on track for the normal remiƩance with Wilton in January.   

 
Lyndeborough needed  to delay  the December  remiƩance unƟl  tax  revenue had been 
collected to meet the needs of the town as voted on by the Select Board.  The December 
payment was received on December 19, about 9 days later than usual. 

 
I want to thank the Select Board of both Lyndeborough and Wilton for their understanding 
in delaying the seƫng of the tax rate.  It has been and will be a great experience to work 
with Russ Boland from Lyndeborough and Paul Branscombe from Wilton in dealing with 
issues that affect our towns. 

 
I  have  been working  on  the  requests  for  informaƟon  from  the  budget  commiƩee  and will 
conƟnue to do so through the holiday break.   As documents are prepared they will be shared 
through email. 
 
As we begin the new year, we will be expecƟng final reports from the Technology Audit as well 
as the final report from the New England AssociaƟon of Schools and Colleges.   
 
The WLC music concert scheduled in December has been rescheduled to January 14. 
 
We have had three snow days so far, the last scheduled day of classes is now Wednesday June 
10. 
 
I was scheduled to aƩend the Southwest Superintendent’s meeƟng on Friday December 20,  I 
chose to stay in district and work on informaƟon requested of my office. 
 

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Ned Pratt             Lizabeth Baker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services          Business Administrator 
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
January - Business Office Board Report 

Food Service Review – YTD – August through November 

 
Average Monthly Enrollment for LCS is down 8 students, up 26 students at FRES and flat at WLC year-
over-year.  District-wide, average enrollment is up 18 students.  The % of Free and Reduced students is flat. 

 
FY20  Free   Red   Paid   Total   % F&R  

LCS        8        3        47        57  14.0% 
FRES      50      10      177      238  21.2% 
WLC      54      12      212      277  19.6% 

Total    113      24      436      572  19.7% 

 
FY19  Free   Red   Paid   Total   % F&R  

LCS      14        5        46        65  20.9% 
FRES      42      12      158      212  19.9% 
WLC      53      10      214      277  19.1% 

Total    109      28      418      554  19.6% 

 
Breakfast meal counts – August through November, the District sold a total of 4,753 breakfast meals over 
60 operating days, or 79 meals per day (vs. 81 the prior year). 

 
FY20 Days   Free   Red   Paid   Total   Meals 

per 
Day  

 Meals 
per Day 

F&R  

LCS 60 57 23 286 366 6 1 
FRES      60   1,527    120   1,235   2,882      48          27  
WLC      60      747    135      623   1,505      25          15  

Total    60   2,331    278   2,144   4,753      79          43  

 
 
FY19 Days   Free   Red   Paid   Total   Meals 

per 
Day  

 Meals 
per Day 

F&R  

LCS      57      325      38      390      753      13            6  
FRES      58   1,029    224      663   1,916      33          22  
WLC      58   1,305    111      596   2,012      35          24  
Total    173   2,659    373   1,649   4,681      81          52  

 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Ned Pratt             Lizabeth Baker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services          Business Administrator 
  
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

Lunch meal counts - August through November, the District sold a total of 12,800 lunch meals over 60 
operating days, or 213 meals per day (vs. 207 the prior year). 

 
FY20 Days   Free   Red   Paid   Total   Meals 

per Day  
 Meals 

per Day 
F&R  

LCS      60      259      44      657        960       16            5  
FRES      60   2,072    284   3,325     5,681       95          39  
WLC      60   1,853    436   3,870     6,159     103          38  
Total    180   4,184    764   7,852   12,800       213         82  

 
FY19 Days   Free   Red   Paid   Total   Meals 

per Day  
 Meals 

per Day 
F&R  

LCS      58      499    114      580     1,193       21          11  
FRES      58   1,667    514   2,757     4,938       85          38  
WLC      58   2,005    371   3,520     5,896     102          41  
Total    174   4,171    999   6,857   12,027       207         89  

 
Revenue Forecast as of 12-11-19:  In FY19, revenues were $252,391 which included revenues of 
$204,134 and a general fund transfer of $48,257.  The forecast for FY20 totals $ 229,852 which includes 
revenues of $204,852 and a general fund transfer of $25,000.   
 

Account Description FY19 FY20 
Budget 

YTD  
12-11-19 

Forecast 

21.1610.000.00.00000 Food Svc Sales - Lunch $95,706 $96,600 $23,924 72,517 

21.1611.000.00.00000 Food Svs Sales - Breakfast $18,783 $18,400 $4,009 10,587 

21.1615.000.02.00000 Food Svs Sales - Non Program $0 $0 $14,035 $45,205 

21.1630.000.00.00000 Food Svs Sales - Catering $0 $0 $604 $604 

21.1990.000.00.00000 Food Svc Misc Revenue $0 $0 $52 $52 

21.3260.000.00.00000 Child Nutrition - State $2,555 $2,500 $153 $3,229 

21.4560.000.00.00000 Child Nutrition - Federal Lunch $58,073 $73,500 14,397 $55,331 

21.4561.000.00.00000 Child Nutrition - Federal Breakfast $19,851 $14,000 $4,118 $17,327 

21.4590.000.00.00000 Commodities $9,166 $0 $0 $0 

21.5210.000.00.00000 Trans From Gen. Fund $48,257 $25,000 $0 $25,000 

Total  $252,391 $230,000 $61,293 $229,852 

 
Debt Collection – Since the beginning of the fiscal year, the District has reduced debt from Active 
students by $ 1,152.  The debt associated with inactive students remains at $5,388 as of December 11. 

 
As of: Active 

July 1 2019 $14,876 
Dec 12 2019 $13,724 

 
 
 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

Expenditures YTD: Salaries and benefits are forecast to be over budget by $5,368 mainly due to NHRS 
and dental benefits (not budgeted) and salary lines.  This shortfall is anticipated to be covered by the 
remainder of the budget to net $386. 
 

Account Description Budget YTD  Encumbrance Balance 

21.3110.116.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr Salary $42,000.00  $20,853.39  $22,615.36  ($1,468.75) 

21.3110.211.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr Medical $2,000.00  $0.00  $1,300.00  $700.00  

21.3110.213.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr Life Ins $84.00  $15.54  $23.21  $45.25  

21.3110.214.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr Disability Ins $88.00  $13.02  $19.13  $55.85  

21.3110.220.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr FICA $3,464.00  $1,595.20  $1,729.98  $138.82  

21.3110.231.00.00000 Employee Retirement  $0.00  $1,071.47  $2,526.15  ($3,597.62) 

21.3110.250.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr U/C $64.00  $68.81  $74.62  ($79.43) 

21.3110.260.00.00000 F/Svc Supvsr W/C $1,069.00  $518.69  $562.52  ($12.21) 

21.3120.116.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs Salary $69,615.50  $25,043.46  $45,908.66  ($1,336.62) 

21.3120.211.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs Medical $10,422.00  $3,647.56  $6,774.04  $0.40  

21.3120.212.00.00000 Dental Insurance $0.00  $221.83  $411.97  ($633.80) 

21.3120.213.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs Life Ins $210.00  $14.42  $26.43  $169.15  

21.3120.214.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs Disability Ins $196.00  $7.63  $14.17  $174.20  

21.3120.220.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs FICA $5,679.00  $1,938.66  $3,554.35  $185.99  

21.3120.231.00.00000 Employee Retirement  $0.00  $11.17  $0.00  ($11.17) 

21.3120.250.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs U/C $282.00  $83.39  $151.55  $47.06  

21.3120.260.00.00000 F/Svc Wkrs W/C $1,784.00  $540.71  $988.53  $254.76  

Salary/Benefits  $136,957.50  $55,644.95  $86,680.67  ($5,368.12) 

21.3120.430.00.00000 F/Svs Repairs & Maint $5,000.00  $1,031.81  $3,000.00  $968.19  

21.3120.580.00.00000 F/Svc Travel $2,199.62  $588.96  $1,011.04  $599.62  

21.3120.610.00.00000 F/Svc Non Food Supplies $7,000.00  $3,030.55  $2,719.45  $1,250.00  

21.3120.612.00.00000 F/Svc Office Supplies $300.00  $0.00  $0.00  $300.00  

21.3120.613.00.00000 F/Svc Postage & Del $225.00  $55.00  $170.00  $0.00  

21.3120.615.00.00000 F/Svc Chemicals $1,000.00  $937.51  $1,062.49  ($1,000.00) 

21.3120.617.00.00000 F/Svc Kitchen Supplies $250.00  $150.38  $0.00  $99.62  

21.3120.630.00.00000 F/Svc Food Supplies $53,703.50  $25,194.40  $25,679.60  $2,829.50  

21.3120.631.00.00000 F/Svc Milk $11,100.00  $4,297.68  $6,802.32  $0.00  

21.3120.632.00.00000 F/Svc Snacks $4,619.88  $3,338.98  $3,014.17  ($1,733.27) 

21.3120.633.00.00000 F/Svc USDA Commodities $1,312.50  $594.50  $718.00  $0.00  

21.3120.650.00.00000 F/Svc Software $5,132.00  $3,391.00  $0.00  $1,741.00  

21.3120.810.00.00000 F/Svc Dues & Fees $1,200.00  $500.50  $0.00  $699.50  

Non Salary/Benefits  $93,042.50  $43,111.27  $41,177.07  $5,754.16  

      

Total  $230,000.00  $98,756.22  $127,857.74  $386.04  

 

 
 
 



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL 

57 SCHOOL ROAD 
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 

(603) 654-6123 
www.sau63.org/domain10 

 

 
       

 
Brian Bagley, Principal 
Sarah Edmunds, Assistant Principal 

 
Amanda J. Kovaliv, School Counseling Coordinator 

           Ashley Goggin, Middle School Counselor 
 

 
 

Principal Report 
January 7, 2020 

The Wilton-Lydneborough Cooperative graduating class of 2020 took part in the “I Am College Bound/I Applied” 
initiative, designed to increase the amount of New Hampshire high school seniors submitting college applications. 
Twenty-one WLC seniors participated in this statewide initiative that encouraged students to apply to college on 
Wednesday, November 20th. During the event, seniors had the opportunity to prepare and apply to all New Hampshire 
state colleges for free.  High school counselor Mandy Kovaliv, along with admissions representatives from NHHEAF and 
various colleges/universities throughout the state were on hand to guide the students through the process. WLC students 
saved $1,750.00 in admission fees! 
 
On December 7th, the WLC High School Robotics team, the WLC W4RR10R5, attended our first competitive 
event. The scrimmage was a great way for us to practice with our robot and meet other teams as well as get a feel for the 
overall process of an official competition.  We placed second in the scrimmage but what we took away from the event is 
much more valuable.  With our newfound experience and knowledge, we are approaching coding and building our robot 
with renewed perspective and excitement.  Our official qualifiers are on January 26th, and February 3rd, and we know 
those dates are fast approaching.  Thanks to all the support from our WLC Community! 
 
The December 5th early release day Assistant Principal Sarah Edmunds worked with the staff on introducing 
restorative circles as a way to discuss student learning and connect with them during advisory. Restorative circles 
are strategies that can be used in classrooms and out to develop relationships, build communities and respond to conflicts 
and problems as they arrive.   
 
Eleven juniors and seniors went on a field trip with Mrs. Kovaliv and Mrs. Gosselin to tour Nashua Community 
College.  The students were greeted with open arms and were fortunate to have two professors speak to them about their 
programs and what they have to offer.  The tour opened student’s eyes to all the opportunities a community college has to 
offer.  
 
AD Report: 
Winter Sports Snapshots 
Swimming and Diving 
# of participants: 4 girls 
Coach: Nancy McManus(Milford) 
 
Indoor Track 
# of participants: 9 
Coach: Jack Nichols(Milford) 
 
Alpine Skiing 
# of participants: 3 boys 
Coach: Stuart Browne 
 
Boys Varsity Basketball 
Head Coach: Malin Segal 
# of players: 10 
Record: 1-0 



Next Home Game: 1/3/20 vs. Mt Royal at 6pm 
 
Boys JV Basketball 
Head Coach: TBD 
# of players: 9 
Record: 0-0 
Next Home Game: 1/16/20 vs. PCA at 5:30pm 
  
December Middle School: 
 
Grade 6 Math: The students have just wrapped up their unit on adding, subtracting, multiplying, and 
dividing decimals. They completed a Dunkin Donuts activity where they were tasked to put themselves in 
the shoes of a Dunkin Donuts employee whose register broke during the hours of a busy commute. To 
avoid angry customers, the students had to total up various Dunkin Donuts orders to keep business going. 
The students had a lot of fun with this activity. We are now working on finding the area of a variety of 
shapes, and will be completing a hands-on math project upon their return from break. 
 
Grade 6 ELA: The students are working on completing a performance task that demonstrates their 
comprehension and analysis of short stories read this semester.  Students will analyze the stories for point 
of view, character traits, setting, and imagery as well as interpret figurative language in order to develop a 
puppet show that retells the original short story from a different character’s perspective.  Students will 
create an original script, an original puppet representation of their chosen character, and a scenery 
backdrop.  Students will perform their puppet show on Thursday, December 19th during their ELA class. 
 
Grade 6 Social Studies: In Social Studies, students have just begun a new unit on Ancient Egypt. They 
have been learning about the role of culture in Ancient Egypt and the unique attributes of Egyptian daily 
life, ranging from the reasoning behind mummification to the mystery of pyramid building.  
 
Grade 6 Science: Students are investigating thermal energy transfer. They are testing features of a cup 
that might explain why one cup design is better than another in keeping a liquid warm or cold. At the end 
of the unit students will be challenged to design their own container that can perform as well as a store 
bought container. 
 
Grade 7 Science: Students have spent some time building knowledge about plant and animal cells in 
preparation for their their newest unit, which they’ve just began. This unit, a case study, has students 
investigate a patient named M’Kenna, to figure out what is causing her symptoms. Through this unit, 
students will discover the inner-workings of the human body, and build their understanding of cause and 
effect in nature.  
 
Grade 7 Language Arts: The students have read sections of A Christmas Carol, by Charles Dickens and 
are learning script writing. They are turning their summaries into scripts that will be performed, in front 
of the class, next week.   
The students in seventh and eighth grade went on a field trip to see the play, “A Christmas Carol,” at the 
Palace Theatre in Manchester. The students loved it and great time. They were amazed at the singing, 
costumes and set designs and got some great ideas for their individual performances. 
 
Grade 7 Math: The students have continued to work on Geometry skills from angles, identifying 
triangles,  angles of polygons and solving for missing angles. Now we have moved on to circles, finding 
the circumference and area of a circle. The students are learning how to follow a formula and come up 
with a solution. We will finish the chapter with finding the area of composite figures.  
 



Grade 7 Social Studies: 7th grade S.S. students are working on a long-term project about the History of 
Latin America. Students explore topics of their choice from ancient times like the Maya and Aztec 
Empires through moderns events like the Cuban Revolution. This project is specifically designed to 
increase content knowledge while also fostering research and writing skills. 
 
Grade 8 Language Arts: The students have finished reading the novel, Devil’s Arithmetic, by Jane 
Yolen. The students are in the process of writing argumentative essays about whether or not they think the 
main character is a hero based on Joe Campbell’s research and model of “A Hero’s Journey.” The essays 
involve:  an outline, in-text citations, transitions as well as text evidence and quotes to back up their 
thesis. 
 
Grade 8 Math: The students have just begun a unit on rigid transformations of points and shapes on a 
graph. This unit is entirely online, which allows students to manipulate coordinates through a series of 
virtual exercises. These lessons are self-paced to suit each individual learner, and are aimed at 
strengthening problem-solving and critical thinking skills. So far, the students are eager to get to class to 
work on their unit, and have shown great pride in their accomplishments with each lesson.  
 
Grade 8 Social Studies: Students are in the middle of a long-term, writing and research intensive project 
about the American Revolution. Each student is assuming the “character/role” of historical figures such as 
Thomas Jefferson, Abigail Adams, and Benedict Arnold. They then study the major events of the 
American Revolution and create “artifacts” written and created through the perspective of their 
“character”. This project is designed to promote research and writing skills, as well as to increase content 
knowledge, and creative thinking. 
 
Grade Science 8 (Dream Team): Students have begun the Project Lead the Way Unit: Energy and 
The Environment. Students will be challenged to design, model, and test; wind turbines, alternative 
energy systems and other various projects focused on alternative energy. 
 
Grade 8 Science (Team Awesome): Students have begun their investigation of a phenomenon in which 
sound from a car’s speakers causes the windows of a nearby building to shake. Through this unit, students 
will investigate and discover how sound waves work, building their greater understanding of energy, and 
its relationship with matter.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
Brian Bagley 
 
 
 



  

FLORENCE	RIDEOUT	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	
18 TREMONT STREET 

WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 
(603) 732-9264 Main                  (603) 654-3490 Fax  

www.sau63.org 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Robert LaRoche, Principal                                                  Jo Anne Dufour, School Counselor   
                                 
 

Principal Report 
 

FRES and LCS had a very active end to 2019.  
 
November held celebrations like the Turkey Trot, raffles for prizes and discounts on 
holiday food as well as in-class learning related to Thanksgiving.  In the classroom, teachers 
continued with district wide initiatives such as focused reading instruction and addressing 
gaps in the math program to better prepare students using the STAR 360 data. First 
Quarter Report Cards went out and Parent-Teacher conferences were held to provide 
insight on how each child is doing in school academically, socially, and developmentally. 
Teachers were able to describe in great detail the experiences that are seen in-class and I 
was also able to sit in on some of these meetings. I am impressed by the depth of 
knowledge teachers have, especially as it pertains to specifics on the student’s strengths 
and weaknesses. 
 
December brought with it some colder temperatures and snow, which is nothing new to 
this part of New England. We were able to get outside for recess just about every day and 
will continue to do so unless the temperature (wind chill) is below 13 degrees.  
 
The data from STAR 360 helps to identify areas of success and those that need closer 
attention. Our staff in the WIN program assist teachers by working with small groups of 
students to bring their skill level up and improve performance. An example of the benefits 
of the WIN program can be seen in side-by-side comparison of improvement.  
 
In Literacy, the greatest scaled score growth was seen in grades K and 1 with: 

 Kindergarten WIN students had 114 scaled score growth compared to 86 for non-
WIN. 

 Grade 1 WIN students had 208 SS growth compared to 120 non-WIN  
  

In Math, the greatest scaled score growth was seen at grades 1 and 3: 
 Grade 1 WIN students had 105 compared to 60 non-WIN 
 Grade 3 WIN students had 79 compared to 46 non-WIN 

 
These are the average scaled scores of students in those groups. The goal is to have these 
students improve at a faster rate in order to make up any deficiencies as early as possible 
in their educational careers. 
To close out the month, FRES will be visiting the historic Wilton Town Theater as guests to 
watch a show on social and emotional development, Students will learn to push through 
difficult times and take on trying challenges.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Curriculum Report: January 7, 2020 

Professional Learning 

Two additional grants were approved in December.  One for $4,750.00 will fund expenses for our 

middle and high school robotics co-curriculum teams.  Another grant of over $5,000.00 will fund 

training expenses for our computer science teacher, Andrew Tyler, to attend a computer science 

institute for five days. 

I attended the regular curriculum, instruction, and assessment meetings this month.  We debriefed 

the topics addressed at the recent state technology conference, changes at the Department of 

Education, upcoming conferences, state testing logistics with a representative from the Department 

of Education, and planning for this year’s summer conference at Keene State University.  Next 

month we will hear from a representative from the regional energy and the environment council 

about free workshops for teachers and other energy and environmental resources. 

Our December 5 early release time received very positive feedback.  The FRES and LCS teachers 

spent time during the afternoon with the math consultant exploring additional resources available 

through our pilot program.  The kindergarten teachers met as a group in the morning to talk with 

the consultant, and so did our W.I.N. (R.T.I.) teachers to learn more about the intervention 

resources. 

At WLC, the teachers spent the time discussing aspects of the school’s climate and culture and 

strategies for adults and students.  In January the student leadership group will present the student, 

staff, and community survey data to the teachers and then each group will begin analysis of the 

data and work on steps in respective action plans to improve the climate and culture of the school. 

The special services teachers and staff met with representatives from Gateways to discuss the 

various programming options offered through this agency.  Gateways offers services for a variety 

of needs spanning early childhood to post school transition.  As a result of this meeting, our staff 

now has additional tools to use in support of our students and their families. 

Assessment 

Students in grades K-8 will complete the end of quarter STAR 360 assessments at the end of 

January and early February.  Teachers will analyze the data in order to plan instruction and 

provide intervention as needed. 

Students in grades 3-8 will continue taking topic related modular assessments provided by the 

state testing system throughout the year.  These are short, quiz-like questions on various parts of 

the grade level curriculum in the format of the state test. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Heon, Curriculum Coordinator 

 

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 

District Curriculum Coordinator 

Julie S. Heon, Ed. D. 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-732-9273 

 

 

















































































 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

PUBIC HEARING AND SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, December 17, 2019 3 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 4 

     6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
Present: Matt Ballou, Miriam Lemire, Carol LeBlanc, Jonathan Vanderhoof (after Budget Co. mtg.), Mark Legere 7 
(6:31pm), Alex LoVerme (7:35pm), and Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral 8 
 9 
Superintendent Bryan Lane, Technology Director Mark Kline, and Clerk Kristina Fowler 10 
 11 

I. CALL TO ORDER  12 
Chairman Ballou called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 13 
 14 

II. PUBLIC HEARING-UNANTICIPATED REVENUE 15 
Superintendent reviewed this is a public hearing held per RSA 198:20-b for unanticipated revenue in the amount of 16 

$102,206 to be accepted and expended.  New Hampshire State Legislature has increased the amount of Special 17 

Education Aid for the 2019-2020 school year in the amount of $239,346. On page 45 of the WLC Annual Report from 18 

the last district meeting, the district budgeted $137,087. This creates an increase in revenue to the district in the 19 

amount of $102,206.  Chairman Ballou asked for public input; none heard. Chairman Ballou closed the public hearing 20 

at 6:31pm.  21 

 22 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept and expend an additional 23 

$102,206 for the funding of Special Education Programs. * 24 

 25 

Chairman Ballou asked for any board discussion: none heard. 26 

 27 

*Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 28 

 29 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 30 

 There was no public comment to report.  31 
 32 

IV. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 33 
a. Reports 34 

i. Superintendent’s Report 35 
Superintendent reported he has updated the Board regarding recent nursing coverage issues. On December 10 and 11 36 
the nurse was available from 9:30-1pm only at FRES and a substitute in on Monday. Coverage is needed for about 3 37 
weeks coming up and has been secured. There will be a transition meeting for the substitute to have knowledge of 38 
student issues. As part of an annual review he reviewed PD documentation for the teachers who are due for 39 
recertification this year. All but 4 have been approved and should all be set by the end of school year. The teachers 40 
who have been approved can apply for rectification and pay the fee after January 1. Any PD they have after this will 41 
go toward their next recertification in 3 years. A document has been provided regarding speech and language and will 42 
be discussed later in the meeting. 43 
 44 
Chairman Ballou noted if there is any direction to be made to the Superintendent it should come from the School 45 
Board as it has been our past practice.  Requests can be made to the Board and the Board can decide.  46 

ii. Business Administrator’s Report 47 
 Superintendent reported in Ms. Baker’s absence that she has provided a total look back at the prior school year. The 48 
fund balance was negative $893 due to food service, we didn’t over expend our budget; still are compliant with the 49 
law. He reviewed the recommendations as a result of the audit including reviewing policies every 3-5 years.  Ms. 50 
Baker has brought forward a request for the Wellness Policy to be addressed. A recommendation to review the food 51 
service fund to determine the cause of the deficit and consider presenting to voters a warrant to retain 2.5% of the 52 
fund balance; this is being discussed through warrant article discussions. Also a recommendation regarding 53 
expendable trust funds due to significant portions being spent down and an issue with the student activity funds which 54 



 

   

has been dealt with and lastly, journal entries are reviewed by another member of Ms. Baker’s staff which was not 55 
previously being done. Superintendent and Ms. Baker have discussed the recommendations at length.  Superintendent 56 
confirmed that there were student activity issues in the past couple of years. 57 
 58 

b. Letters/Information 59 
i. Greenhouse Information 60 

A request had been made to bring forward any curriculum for the greenhouse which has been provided. One is one is 61 
from the science department and the other is an interdisciplinary piece from the Spanish teacher Ms. Humphries. 62 
These are the only two that exist at this time. He confirmed the students are involved in a community piece at WLC 63 
and are enjoying it; started by Ms. Humphries. Superintendent voiced it would be appropriate to have the greenhouse 64 
costs addressed through the CIP and Facilities Committee. They could look at it and have the science department 65 
come in and speak to the Board to determine the viability. 66 

ii. Wellness Policy Memo 67 
Ms. Baker had provided a memo requesting the Wellness Policy be addressed by the Policy Committee to update and 68 
determine the best course of action. Superintendent reported there have been some specific changes such as foods that 69 
can and cannot be offered which are not within the current policy. He will provide a copy of the current Wellness 70 
Policy to the committee.   71 

iii. Speech/Language Services 72 
Mr. Pratt provided a memo regarding data on speech/language services as it relates to kindergarten. Superintendent 73 
reported data shows 1st grade did decrease by 1 student and as we grow, these numbers can decrease. If we have 1 74 
hour less of units per week, that builds and the student doesn’t need it in the years coming. There was a drop from 75 
grade 1 to 2. This seems to be having a positive effect. It is not financially significant; it’s a trend going in the right 76 
direction. The more skills students get earlier, the less they need long term help and decreases our dependency on 77 
speech and language. Speech and language issues in preschool are speech issues, not language issues and most likely 78 
there for a long time. The improvement is coming from the language part. He confirmed if students coming in have an 79 
IEP from a prior district, that IEP comes forward and we have 45 days to make any changes but we have to fully 80 
implement the IEP. For students who do not have an IEP it takes some time to determine what they need. He 81 
confirmed this is connected to full day kindergarten and the reading program; grades 1-2 it is combination of a lot of 82 
things and the reading program go down to the kindergarten level. 83 
  84 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 85 
There was no consent agenda to report.  86 

 87 
VIII. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 88 

A request was made to move the Strategic Planning report to the joint session with the Budget Committee.  89 
 90 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to move the Strategic Planning 91 
Committee report to the joint session with the Budget Committee. 92 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 93 
 94 

V. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 95 
Present: Leslie Browne, Christine Tiedemann, Dennis Golding, Kevin Boette, and Adam Lavallee 96 
 97 
The joint session started at 6:52pm. The Budget Committee was already in session as they met prior. 98 

a. YTD Expenditure Report FY 2019-2020 99 
A summary sheet has been provided. Superintendent reports the fund balance is $116,877.14. No adjustments have 100 
been made in encumbrances. He does not expect to see much change in this. On the website the request for “check by 101 
check” are available under Budget Information for the community to see. Chairman Ballou noted the YTD report (for 102 
revenue) does not include the $102,206 (Special Education Aid) that was just approved at the public hearing. 103 
Superintendent agrees; it has to be included in revenue and will create a different fund balance. He confirmed YTD is 104 
for the current school year and we are not doing any budget transfers. 105 

b. FY 2020-2021 106 
Superintendent reviews the summary page for draft 4 which includes changes from draft 3. After a review of food 107 
service, we decreased the shortage by $10,000. We will have a student move into the district in January who needs an 108 
ABA Therapist. This has been added this to the budget. You will see the increase. Salary of $27,367 is a full year 109 
salary. In this school year it is not budgeted for full year. This position is 7.5 hours per day at $20 per hour. Another 110 
change is we originally budgeted $60,000 for retirees but have decreased that by $20,000 as the date to notify us has 111 



 

   

passed. Ms. Baker has met with the copier representatives and has decreased this by $5,000. Overall there is an 112 
increase of $19,414 due to adding the ABA Therapist. A question was raised what is the net expense for this. 113 
Superintendent confirmed CAT Aid (the only form of reimbursement) “kicks in” at $49,000 and we only get a 114 
percentage. We may see $6,000; the revenue will be adjusted along with the funds that were approved through the 115 
public hearing. The Special Education Aid will continue into next year; it is for 2 years. He noted there may be 116 
something that potentially could happen to offset the cost of the ABA Therapist but this is not confirmed. 117 
Superintendent confirmed on lines 832 and 846, cafeteria table for LCS are duplicated, only one is needed and should 118 
be in the school budget. A question was raised if the 4.2% increase over FY 20 includes the bond. Superintendent 119 
responded he doesn’t know the specific dollar figure from the bond but the increase would be the $513,562 plus the 120 
bond. Increase in spending is approximately $800,000. He believes food service is included in the totals. Chairman 121 
Ballou expressed that he wants to be sure our revenues are documented properly. He noticed under proposed budget 122 
revenues this year we have the $184,811 and we just voted in the $102,206 and that is not included and not in the 123 
FY21 proposed. Superintendent responded the budget would still be an increase. A brief discussion was had regarding 124 
if food service is being counted twice. On the proposed revenues it shows a transfer from the general fund of $25,000 125 
but it’s also in a line item within the actual budget. Superintendent will have Ms. Baker look at this. Concern was 126 
expressed that if we are not zeroing out every line item and starting from scratch every year we will have double 127 
entries. The question was raised how can we sure that there are not more things like that.  Superintendent responded 128 
there is nothing else listed twice, both Ms. Baker and he are reading through it on a consistent basis. He has gone 129 
through it one line at a time and has not found any additional, he sorted by account number, by person responsible and 130 
by description.  It was questioned if items are broken down by project code and then rolled up into object code. 131 
Superintendent responded he will find out from Ms. Baker. A request was made to have a list broken down by project 132 
code.  Responding to a question what are the top 2 increases in the budget, Superintendent responded if look at the 133 
deficit from this year, it is salaries and benefits. It was noted that with the bond coming off, it is “kind of” a wash; 134 
plus, you have the additional revenues. Superintendent added that there are over $150,000 in contingencies inclusive 135 
of SPED, health plans and about $30,000 for technology. There will be specifics around software and securities 136 
according to the first trial of the technology report. Contingencies for technology are also something that had never 137 
been included in the budget before.   138 
 139 
A discussion was had regarding what the community is saying and the need to get positive messages out as good 140 
things are happening in the schools.  Positive and negative feedback is being heard in the community; there is some 141 
misinformation out there such as the schools closing. A suggestion was made to get people to come in and volunteer, 142 
have a grandparent day; reach out and let people know they are welcome in the school. It was noted having the he 143 
district meeting on a Saturday at 9AM is difficult to get a babysitter for those who has kids.   144 
 145 
It was suggested to break down the numbers with what our legal requirements are and what we are getting in funding 146 
from the State and what we are required to do. Superintendent explained when the SPED law was put into place 147 
(1972), as part of the law they would fund 40% but the government has never gone above 18%. If you look at our 148 
budget if we had almost triple federal funding, we would be able to do things in a different manner. Through his 149 
Superintendent Association they have lobbied around these issues but it has not been a priority. It was suggested the 150 
public be invited to hear from Principal Bagley and Ms. Edmunds when they present regarding the MS and ask if 151 
there are a few other things we can invite the public in for.  152 
 153 
Superintendent explained increases in the SAU performance incentive line are due to the fact that funding for this 154 
should have increased prior as non-affiliated staff (not part of a CBA) were added such as ABA/RBT and in addition, 155 
FICA and NHRS were not included; it was just straight salary.  Instead the amount of funds to this line did not 156 
change. This has been fixed by Ms. Baker and when she indicates we over spent the budget, that was an area. A 157 
question was raised if it came from the fund balance. Concern was expressed that the funds had to be taken from 158 
another place in the budget but where is the decrease reflected. It was noted this is why freezing lines is so important 159 
and there may be a lot of money left because of this; the School Board needs to watch it closely. Superintendent 160 
responded we were able to find funding last year in the PD account which was not fully expended. We used to send 161 
staff out for PD and now teachers are doing a lot that is grant funded. Dr. Heon has brought in about $58,000-$70,000 162 
of grant funding. Also, there was not a lot of accountability to see that 3 people were attending the same workshop. It 163 
is required by the CBA to include it in the budget.  164 
 165 
Confirmation was had that lines 403-485 are reflective of NHRS requirements which is different than payments to a 166 
retiree when a person retirees, that would be considered a service awards.  Line 705 (testing) indicates it is for STAR 167 
360, is this correct. Superintendent responds the description is not appropriate and believes it should be PSAT testing. 168 



 

   

He will confirm this. Superintendent confirms lines 746-747 are to continue the work regarding school culture and 169 
climate as recommended by NEASC; in the current year it is grant funded.  It was noted Gale, used for online 170 
research, is outdated. Superintendent will look into this. A question was raised if there was a way to see how much 171 
each site was used; this will be looked into.  172 
 173 

 STRATEGIC PLANNING REPORT 174 
Ms. Lemire provided information regarding 2 items the committee has been researching. One is the School Resource 175 
Officer (SRO); they had been struggling to get associated cost. The committee did not vote on this. The second item 176 
they researched was what it would cost to live stream the meetings; there are a lot of options. A ball park figure of 177 
was given $5,000-$10,000 and is needed annually to livestream in an effective way. Cost is for equipment, 178 
broadcasting and archiving. The committee did not vote on this either. Discussion was had that there would need to be 179 
advanced planning with knowing the requirements, who is responsible, who stores it, how long does it have to be 180 
kept, and have policies in place. Ms. Lemire explained there are a lot of companies who do this and it varies, we could 181 
potentially “piggy back” on what the town does; there are options to make it less expensive. Some provide equipment 182 
and we would need to know from our technology person what is needed for the space. There was a concern that what 183 
the town has is not good quality. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral added there is a company that allows a free trial of the service 184 
and the representative also offered to do a teleconference and make herself available to discuss. The committee is 185 
looking for direction to move forward or not. Discussion was had that there is a lot of information on the website. It 186 
was questioned how many people will actually watch it, you are missing part of it if you do not attend the meeting and 187 
there is a long term commitment; perhaps wait a year and see if there is interest. Superintendent suggests when the 188 
technology plan is updated maybe that is a good place for this to happen to enhance or be helpful in that manner.  189 
 190 
Discussion was had regarding the SRO and if there was support for it as a warrant article or in the budget or at all. It 191 
was noted in the past positions such as directors were on a warrant. It was expressed that it is put on a warrant, it can 192 
create a bad situation as you would need to have a warrant to remove the position. Superintendent will look into this 193 
to determine if that is accurate as his past experience indicates it is not the case. Ms. Lemire reports because of 194 
benefits the cost of an SRO can be about $90,000-$100,000 and would be split 75% by town of Wilton and 25% by 195 
school district. This includes benefits; the person would be employed by the Police Department. Chief Olesen had 196 
said that the cost included everything the officer needed (equipment, car etc.). A suggestion was made for 1 or 2 part-197 
time officers may be more cost effective. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral added that the committee did look at other towns 198 
similar to our size and districts in the surrounding area and a lot of them have SRO’s. They did interview other people 199 
from other schools, parents, students and teachers and the response was overwhelmingly positive. Ms. Edmunds did a 200 
survey and most of the students didn’t know what an SRO was but once they did they were positive about it. An SRO 201 
can be a deterrent from vandalism and bullying. Ms. LeBlanc noted she believes an SRO is more specialized; has 202 
more advanced, specific training. It was noted this position is recommended by the NH Task Force. Ms. Cloutier-203 
Cabral reported some smaller districts have one. The Police were called to WLC 7 times last year; the benefit would 204 
come from possible prevention and relationships. Superintendent reported by the cooperative nature of the articles of 205 
Agreement, the SRO would service both towns and if full-time, full-year they would be the employee of Wilton. 206 
Chief Olson had made a point that the towns assist each other. Discussion was had regarding a timeline to have it in 207 
the budget or warrant which is tight. All parties have to agree and there would need to be specific language. 208 
Superintendent reported it did not appear that Wilton has had conversations about putting this in the budget. It was 209 
suggested to have a plan/agreement with the town so that when next year’s budget season starts in September it can be 210 
discussed. Superintendent suggested to discuss it with the town once the budget process is completed for both, town 211 
and school district in April, May or June and decide if it would move forward. This way it can be discussed 212 
throughout the fall to present. Strategic Planning Committee completed their tasks unless there is further direction 213 
from the Board. Mr. Vanderhoof is in favor to reach out to the towns ASAP for presenting this March regardless if it 214 
is a warrant or in the budget. Consensus was asked for from the Board on direction. A concern was raised if there is a 215 
contract, were any contracts reviewed to use as a template, do we know if any impact with Primex (insurance carrier) 216 
and have we researched cost of uniforms, radio, gas cost etc. Superintendent suggested with direction from the Board, 217 
that he meet with Chief Olesen and Mr. Branscombe, Wilton Town Administrator to have a preliminary conversation 218 
to discuss funding and bring information back to the Board and to poll the Selectman. Promote it to the community in 219 
the spring to see if there is a level of interest. Chairman Ballou voiced he would agree with the exception of speaking 220 
with the Selectman, this should be done at the Board level. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral volunteered to reach out to the 221 
Selectman. Chairman Ballou noted, looks like that is the consensus; no objection heard. 222 

i. Warrants 223 
Superintendent reviewed the warrant articles, the operating budget (no dollar figure) and the CBA he has only 224 
included one year at this time. Responding to a question, he hopes to have information on the CBA for the next 225 



 

   

meeting. The Building/Equipment and Roadways Capital Reserve, the amount of $120,000 is consistent with the 226 
schedule on the CIP for renovations to the bathrooms at WLC, dishwasher at WLC and sections of the roof at WLC. 227 
Concern was raised that the CIP schedule needs to be updated, by putting in the amount that is needed to do the 228 
projects each year is budgeting, it is not a true capital improvement plan and is not functioning in the way it should. 229 
Discussion was had about this and it was suggested the Facilities Committee review it. It was noted that there were 230 
items that have been added to the plan but the funding for it was not adjusted. Consensus was that the number for the 231 
warrant article cannot be finalized until the CIP is reconfigured.  There was also discussion at the last meeting of 232 
adding the basketball retraction system and the greenhouse to the CIP but this has not been determined.  The 233 
committee meeting this evening was canceled; it will be rescheduled. Consensus was had to table this; no objection 234 
heard.  235 
 236 
The warrant article for SPED capital reserve shows $130,000; the fund has been depleted significantly. This amount 237 
includes 2 out of district placements and one ABA Therapist. When the question was raised if the Board is 238 
comfortable with $130,000 for the SPED warrant; objection was heard by one member suggesting to increase the 239 
number to $150,000 and one member wishes to have it more solidified. It was suggested to have Mr. Pratt determine 240 
if the ABA therapists are 100% with the student only 80%. Superintendent noted he was looking at this. No objection 241 
was heard to remove out of district placements for $1000,000 from the budget and have it in the warrant article. 242 
 243 
The last warrant article is to determine if the school district wanted to put in place establishing a reserve fund, RSA 244 
198:4-b II. This allows to school district to retain 2.5% of the unexpended funds at the end of the school year, similar 245 
to what the towns do. It can only be used for special circumstances and must be approved by the School Board, 246 
Budget Committee, DOE and Commissioner; you would not need approval of the commissioner to use it for tax relief. 247 
You could use it for example if the boiler broke if you had the needed approvals. The towns for example, if they had 248 
to purchase a fire truck, can choose to use the fund as revenue and make it cost neutral to the tax payers. The school 249 
district could do the same thing around teacher contracts, roofing, or capital improvement issues. Currently the entire 250 
fund balance goes back to tax payers; this gives permission to retain up to 2.5%. Discussion was had regarding the 251 
concept and that we are building contingencies in the budget; it may not be the year to do this.  Superintendent 252 
confirmed it is interest bearing. Superintendent confirmed there is an effect on the tax rate, the retained amount would 253 
not go back to the tax payers because of this the tax impact is there is not a reduction and in itself there is an increase. 254 
He added there is a cap to the size of the fund. This is a School Board decision and would be good to have the Budget 255 
Committee’s recommendation. It was noted, if we didn’t have a fund balance, we could take some of the reserve to 256 
make the tax impact level. Superintendent agreed. This will be discussed again at the next meeting.  257 
 258 

VI. PUBIC COMMENTS 259 
Mr. Fran Bujak spoke to recommend adding another warrant article to change the ADM 3-5 year rolling average. He 260 
spoke regarding the 2.5% reserve fund and believes this is the time to do it. The district would use it to fund itself and 261 
keep it flat, not have to go out to the towns and ask for money. You would give yourself the same ability the towns 262 
have, to use it to pay to keep the budget flat, (you and I don’t see it as resident). When you are talking about a 263 
significant increase in the budget such as this year, you could use $250,000 and not have the $500,000 increase. You 264 
would be able to manage your own budget. This is the time to do it, to use it to offset taxes. Regarding the CIP, he 265 
voiced that Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. Boette are correct, the plan was designed as they said to pay for long term things. 266 
The problem is that since it was created, there have been a ton of items that went in and the funding didn’t go up. 267 
Regarding live streaming, he does not support this. He notes if you decided you wanted to continue down that road, 268 
put something out on a warrant that would give the School Board the authority to do this and the people can tell you if 269 
they want to spend it year after year or not. Regarding the SRO, the cost to outfit an officer is very expensive and in 270 
the end he does not believe it would not cost any additional funds. He strongly recommends not to do it.  He adds the 271 
information posted on the website is phenomenal; he suggests adding an executive summary that would tell what the 272 
major change drivers are, what you are adding, changes in SPED and everything else. He voiced congratulations for a 273 
good job this evening.    274 
 275 
Mr. Boette noted, regarding the reserve fund, that we pledged we would return the money and we absolutely should.   276 

 277 
VII. SCHOOL BOARD VACANCY 278 

Discussion was had regarding the recent vacancy of Mr. Clark from the School Board; it is only a month away from 279 
filing for candidacy. Consensus was had to table this. 280 
  281 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 282 



 

   

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 283 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to approve the minutes of November 26, 284 
2019 as written. 285 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 286 
 287 

b. Budget Audit Update 288 
Chairman Ballou reported speaking with 2 business administrators who recommend using our existing auditors 289 
Plodzik and Sanderson; it would be more reasonably priced and they know our books. The ballpark price for a full 3 290 
year look back is $30,000 and that is for someone who knows our books. (Some issues have already addressed.) The 291 
big piece in the 3 year look back is reviewing the budget to actual variance and providing significant over or under 292 
accounts within the 3 years. They spoke of a much more focused audit, calling it an engagement; 3 year look back, 293 
look at some processes, reviewing policies, activates making sure in compliance and frequency of reporting to Board 294 
and Budget Committee. Cost for a smaller audit, reviewing budget to actuals and focus on FY 20 YTD activity, areas 295 
trending over or already over, best practice, budgeting, monitor open PO on this year cost is about $5,000-$7,500. In 296 
addition, looking to start in January and ending in mid-February, 30-45 days. They spoke to a forensic auditor and a 297 
CPA at the same time. The forensic auditor said the number of hours spent, you would have to have some inclining of 298 
malfeasance upfront and unless you were sure that was there, you would be wasting funds to do that. They are not 299 
interested in any RFP process or helping with the RFP. He notes this was a long phone meeting. Discussion was had 300 
regarding the options and if the members support either of the two options. Superintendent noted he is not sure the 301 
$7,500 option would be sufficient for everyone but it would be a response. Chairman Ballou noted we are looking to 302 
see direction the Board would like to go in if any. Discussion included creating two warrants for the public to decide 303 
with language if one passes the other is void, being satisfied with the what they have heard, you would get more value 304 
out of the full audit, the $7,500 will provide information that we already have and the warrant gives the public the 305 
option. It was noted there is a large population of people in the community that are saying, can we just move forward 306 
and don’t want to spend additional funds. Discussion continued if the Board supports this or not. It was noted if the 307 
Board puts out a warrant, they are recommending it. It was also noted if it was a warrant and passed, it would not be 308 
acted on until July. Superintendent noted a petition warrant article is also an option for the public, it needs to include 309 
the dollar figure, they create it themselves and signed by registered voters and they present it. It was expressed that 310 
having the audit has been a topic of ongoing conversation and it has been recommended by the Budget Committee 311 
and this is the Board’s opportunity to have it done. Mr. Vanderhoof noted if you just ignore it, he doesn’t feel that is 312 
appropriate. Chairman Ballou responded, I don’t think we are ignoring it, he has spent his time with the Budget 313 
Committee Chair and Vice Chair and they expressed they didn’t feel it was necessary, they didn’t want to spend 314 
30,000. It was suggested to discuss it with the Budget Committee at the next meeting. It was noted, currently it is not 315 
a proposed warrant article but any Board member can make that motion.  It was suggested to ask the Budget 316 
Committee if the lower cost option meets their needs; Chairman Ballou could ask the Budget Chair and there was 317 
consensus to do this. 318 
 319 

i. Facilities  320 
The committee meeting was canceled for this evening; a reschedule date will be determined. 321 

ii. Budget Liaison 322 
Mr. Vanderhoof reports the committee doesn’t have a target number at this time. He reports they are not overall happy 323 

with the final number presented. They would like more information down to the project codes. They met with teachers 324 

and Mr. Pratt was present; spoke of process and received a lot of good information. He thinks it was a good idea to do 325 

it. He can provide more details if you would like. He believes after listening, there may be areas they are less likely to 326 

reduce. They won’t support a replacement slide he doesn’t believe. The committee briefly spoke of the SRO. There is 327 

not another scheduled meeting prior to the joint session. Chairman Ballou spoke that he attended the meeting and 328 

believed he heard them say it was a tight budget. Mr. Vanderhoof suggested the Board look at the list of items 329 

requested that are not in the budget and see if there can be some recommendation to swap things out. It was noted, we 330 

can’t just say we don’t agree. Superintendent noted the only thing he would advocate for is the half time person in the 331 

CBO. It was noted the committee had asked for a list of positions that could be cut and Mr. Vanderhoof was asked 332 

what that stemmed from. He responded, they wanted suggestions for cuts but they didn’t want to limit it to anything.  333 

He adds, draft 4 has adjustments for ABA and there is no expense reduction in there. That is the issue we are running 334 

into, we continue to try to reduce a budget without reducing any expenses. They are looking for options. He believes 335 

they think the budget is excessively high and the only way to move it is with staffing. Chairman Ballou noted, they 336 

can make suggestions but should not ask the Superintendent to create a list. A board member expressed if staffing is 337 



 

   

the only way to reduce the budget they would like to have a list of staff that are legally required. The public needs to 338 

know this is what we will be reducing and can come to a meeting to advocate for what they want. They need to know 339 

reducing staff has an impact. Mr. Vanderhoof, responding to a question, noted they did not target any other 340 

contingencies but they don’t like the word. They feel there is more contingency in the budget than is listed.      341 

iii. Strategic Planning 342 
See above. 343 

iv. Negotiations 344 
Mr. LoVerme reported this will be discussed during the nonpublic session.  345 

 346 
IX. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 347 

There were none to report at this time; there will be at the next meeting. 348 
 349 

X. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 350 
Mr. Vanderhoof noted the Budget Committee feels like there is stuff in there that never gets purchased such as a 351 
three-year plan for cafeteria tables. Chairman Ballou voiced we should have some alternatives if we disagree; I would 352 
like to agree. A question was raised if Ms. Baker can identify buffers in the budget. Mr. Vanderhoof responded he 353 
doesn’t think they want to cut that thought, they don’t want bare bones, strict budget, they want to cut expenses. 354 
Superintendent voiced for example, if there is $10,000 in cafeteria tables, if we cut that they are gone. Mr. 355 
Vanderhoof confirmed yes, like that, that line is gone. 356 
 357 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 358 
Chairman Ballou noted there is 3 minutes per speaker. 359 
 360 
Mr. Fran Bujak voiced that from back here, you are struggling to do things you shouldn’t have to do. How long was 361 
spent talking about the $30,000 audit and those who want it don’t want to spend any money. He agrees to put the 362 
contingency in and put it on the line it should be on. If you truly need the tables, you should buy them and put them in 363 
the budget. He hopes this School Board has worked with the Superintendent and if there is truly something that can be 364 
cut you know about it and you have the budget you truly need. You have a job to bring us a prudent budget and if you 365 
can’t come to an agreement whatever that difference is be able to clearly articulate what it is and why. It is not our job 366 
to do forensic audits, its our job to talk to the people who know the schools. Articulate the true number; whatever that 367 
is. He asked if you want us to start calling the SAU to not have an audit we will. He recommends not getting sucked 368 
into the loud minority; how many people want an audit and how many people want to spend another $30,000. It is 369 
unfortunate you are put in this position; your job is to put out a prudent budget. Let them go with a warrant if they 370 
want it.  371 
 372 
Mr. Vanderhoof wanted to clarify if his report came off worse than it was. The Budget Committee is not looking to 373 
slash things the school needs but want to make sure the tax payer and the student are taken care of. They support the 374 
school and providing the best education we can afford to give the kids but also support looking after the people that 375 
pay the bill. They have concerns what it costs the community.   Mr. Bujak noted, it’s in their minutes.  376 
 377 

XII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 378 
 Ms. LeBlanc suggested having some recognition for Ms. Fisk at district meeting if she would allow us to do it. It was 379 
noted this would be appropriate.  380 
 381 
Chairman Ballou attended the FRES holiday which was standing room only and was well done unfortunately they 382 
scheduled some things at WLC for the same night. 383 
 384 
Ms. Lemire removes her request to have a list of staff instead asks to be proactively looking at what requirements 385 
costs; we have a better feel for where things are falling.  386 
 387 
Ms. Cloutier-Cabral spoke regarding positive and negative news that she thinks it’s a matter of perception; there are a 388 
lot of good things going on. She has seen this in the Ledger and the Cabinet. She expressed it was really nice that Ms. 389 
Edmunds created an arts booster club and there are some things to look forward to. As much negative news we hear, 390 
when we hear it we should let them know good is happening and we are not closing down the schools.  391 
 392 
Ms. LeBlanc voiced we have a cheerleader in Jessie Salisbury and thinks we need to let her know; she will be there.  393 



 

   

  394 
XIII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 395 

i. Negotiations 396 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to enter Non-Public Session to discuss 397 
negotiations RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 9:52pm. 398 
Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 399 
 400 
  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 401 
The Board entered public session at 11:02pm.    402 
 403 
A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof. 404 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 405 
 406 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 407 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to adjourn the Board meeting at 11:03pm. 408 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 409 
 410 
Respectfully submitted, 411 
Kristina Fowler 412 
 413 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
\\\\ 
 
 
 
 
TO:    The Wilton‐Lyndeborough CooperaƟve School Board 
FROM:    Bryan Lane 
DATE:    12/20/19 
RE:    ResignaƟons/ Appointments/ Leaves 
 
 
ResignaƟons 
 
Amber Casavant  BCBA      We are currently adverƟsing for the posiƟon. 
 
 
Transfers 
 
Stephanie MaƩson  BCaBA      Will be going to part Ɵme at .6 FTE at her request. 
 
Tracy AuCoin    ABA Therapist    Will be filling the remainder of the posiƟon from  
            Stephanie MaƩson, no increase in cost to the district.  

We will be posƟng a para‐educator posiƟon for Ms. 
AuCoin’s current posiƟon. 

 
Pam Griffin  Cook Site Coordinator    She is currently the food service worker at LCS, we will  
            adverƟsing for a food service worker. 
 
Appointments 
 
Kiley Kiernan    ABA Therapist    This is a new posiƟon to accommodate a student new 
            to the district. 
Denise Shea    Long Term Sub.   Kindergarten teacher 
 
Thomas Crowley  JV Boys Basketball  The posiƟon was open. 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Ned Pratt             Lizabeth Baker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services          Business Administrator 
  




	WLC School Board Agenda 1.7.20
	Supt report January 7, 2020
	Business Office Board Report - January 7 2019
	WLC Principal Report January
	principal 1.7
	Principal Report 1.7 2

	Elementary Principal Report-January
	Curr. Report_1.7.2019
	FY21 BUDGET - CHANGES DRAFT 1 TO DRAFT 5
	FY21 BUDGET - DRAFT 5
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 12.17.19
	Resignations-Appointments-Leaves
	Resignations-Appointments-Leaves
	Resignation-BCBA


